W Oaklands Road Switchboard: 01444 458166
Haywards Heath

MID SUSSEX  west sussex DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1

DISTRICT COUNCIL RH16 1SS www.midsussex.gov.uk

4 October 2019

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of CABINET will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER at these offices on MONDAY,
14TH OCTOBER, 2019 at 4.00 pm when your attendance is requested.

Yours sincerely,
KATHRYN HALL
Chief Executive

AGENDA
Pages

1. To receive Declarations of Interest from Members in respect of any

matter on the Agenda.
2. To receive apologies for absence.
3. To confirm Minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2019. 3-8
4, To consider any items that the Leader agrees to take as urgent

business.
5. Land at Hurst Farm, Hurstwood Lane, Haywards Heath 9-26
6. To consider whether to exclude the Press and Public from the meeting

during consideration of the following item in accordance with Section

100A of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it involves

the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act.
7. Exempt Report

To be tabled
8. Questions pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 10 due notice of which

has been given.

Working together for a better Mid Sussex
& ABo,
Se o@éz“

A



To: Members of Cabinet: Councillors J Ash-Edwards (Chair), J Llewellyn-Burke (Vice-Chair),
J Belsey, R de Mierre, S Hillier, A MacNaughton and N Webster

Cabinet - 14 October 2019



Agenda Iltem 3

Minutes of a meeting of Cabinet
held on Monday, 16th September, 2019
from 4.00 pm - 4.54 pm

Present: J Ash-Edwards (Chair)
J Llewellyn-Burke (Vice-Chair)

J Belsey S Hillier N Webster
R de Mierre A MacNaughton
Absent: Councillors

Also Present: Councillors M Belsey, P Chapman and | Gibson

1. TO RECEIVE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FROM MEMBERS IN RESPECT OF
ANY MATTER ON THE AGENDA.

Councillor Hillier declared a personal interest with respect to Items 5 and 6 - Service
and Financial Planning Guidelines for 2021/21 and Budget Management 2019/20 -
Progress Report April to July 2019 as he is a Member of West Sussex County
Council.

2. TO RECEIVE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.
None as all Members were present.
3. TO CONFIRM MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 8 JULY 2019.

The Minutes of Meeting of the Cabinet held on 8 July 2019 were approved as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

4. TO CONSIDER ANY ITEMS THAT THE LEADER AGREES TO TAKE AS URGENT
BUSINESS.

None.
5. SERVICE AND FINANCIAL PLANNING - GUIDELINES FOR 2020/21

Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources introduced the report which sets out the
service and financial context within which the authority will operate over the next two
years and provides guidelines for developing the Corporate Plan and Budget for
2020/21. He noted that the outlook for local government funding is uncertain as the
political situation is unsettled. He highlighted that the Fair Funding review is likely to
be delayed to next year and the Council Tax increase is now likely to be a maximum
of £5 or 2% (whichever is higher). He noted that recycling credits could reduce for all
local authorities in the County due to West Sussex County Council’s Budget cuts.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019 3



The Leader commented that the Council would be in a good position without the
impact of reduced funding from the County Council. The Council is in a strong
financial position, providing good quality services and value for money for the
residents. He noted it was important to start work early on how the Council can
protect services and reduce the impact of changing budgets at West Sussex County
Council.

The Cabinet Member for Community commended the Council’s policy to provide
temporary accommodation within the District by purchasing properties. He welcomed
the success to the project which has enabled families to stay within their local
communities and support networks. He noted the difference between homelessness
and rough sleeping, and was pleased to see that it was being highlighted.

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning noted that it was good that the
Council were in a position to improve services for homeless families, especially with
a project as ambitious as the provision of temporary accommodation. He also noted
that the Council needed the Development Plan Reserve to fund and maintain the
District Plan, and further funding may be necessary in the future. With regards to
issues with the Pension Fund the triennial review is underway, and he noted that if
contributions are lowered it can quickly reduce the value of the pension fund.

The Cabinet Member for Customer Services confirmed her agreement of maintaining
funding for the Development Plan Reserve. She asked if there were any implications
on the 3% increase for Council Tax at the County Council.

The Head of Corporate Resources advised that the County Council can increase
Council Tax by 2% and then an additional 2% precept can be added for Adult and
Social Care provision.

The Cabinet Member for Economic Growth advised that the Council needed to invest
in order to make savings.

The Leader took the Cabinet to recommendations which were agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED
Cabinet recommended to:

(i) endorse the guidelines set out within this report and use these principles in
preparing the 2020/21 Corporate Plan and Budget;
(ii) reserve its decision on Council Tax levels until after the Spending Review.

6. BUDGET MANAGEMENT 2019/20 — PROGRESS REPORT APRIL TO JULY 2019

Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources introduced the report for the first quarter
of this financial year. He noted that savings had been made on insurance premiums
and noted the proposals on page 25. He informed Cabinet that there had been a
delay in the demolition of the Martlets Hall because of asbestos, work would
commence again on 26 September with a new contractor and the anticipated
timescale for the work is 8 weeks.

The Cabinet Member for Economic Growth welcomed the extra funding to help with
the restructure of the Corporate Estates department. He asked whether the officers
had confidence that tenants would maintain the leased properties to the required
standard.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019



The Head of Corporate Resources noted that the recent restructure was to ensure
that the Council has more skilled staff to manage the Council’s growing portfolio of
properties.

The Cabinet Member for Customer Services welcomed the allocation of increased
funding for work on trees in the District.

The Leader confirmed that the report indicated a strong start to the financial year. He
also welcomed the increased funding for tree maintenance and noted the receipt of
supplementary rents. He highlighted the utilisation of Section 106 funds to improve
playgrounds.

The Cabinet Member for Service Delivery and Environment supported the proposed
improvements to playgrounds.

The Cabinet Member for Customer Service asked why the service charges on BACs
payments had not been budgeted for.

The Head of Corporate Resources confirmed that the payment card industry had
unexpectedly added fees.

The Deputy Leader noted the Council’s good financial planning and welcomed the
underspend which will be used to assist the Council through more challenging times.
She commented that it was fortunate that the Council had been able to acquire more
properties last year and this was due to efficient financial planning of the Council.

The Leader took the Cabinet to recommendations which were agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED
Cabinet recommended to Council for approval:

(i) that £280,925 grant income relating to Flexible Homelessness Support Grant be
transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 21;

(i) that £27,765 grant income relating to Preventing Homelessness Grant be
transferred to Specific Reserve as detailed in paragraph 22;

(i) that £457,000 of the revenue underspend be transferred to Specific Reserves as
detailed in paragraph 23;

(iv) the variations to the Capital Programme contained in paragraph 33 in accordance
with the Council’s Financial Procedure rule B3.

To note:

(v) the remainder of the report.

7. PERFORMANCE MONITORING FOR THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2019/20.

Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources introduced the report and highlighted that
79% of the indicators were green. He confirmed that the report had been considered
by the Scrutiny Committee for Leader, Finance and Performance on 4 September
20109.

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning commented that the indicator for the
emission of greenhouse gasses from council buildings was a new indicator. He
confirmed that the Council had been reducing its carbon footprint for a number of
years through increasing thermal efficiency and replacing oil fired boilers.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019



The Cabinet Member for Economic Growth welcomed the report and queried whether
the report had included a revised target for parking charges and whether the Parking
Strategy Working Group should consider longer term targets for the use of mobiles to
pay for parking.

Judy Holmes, the Assistant Chief Executive confirmed that the target figure had not
yet been revised and payment by mobiles had been received better than anticipated.
The Council would continue to monitor with a view to amending the target. She noted
that the Parking Strategy Working Group would consider such matters of providing a
range of payment options as part of the review of the Parking Strategy.

The Cabinet Member for Community welcomed the increase in the number of
Wellbeing case interventions. He confirmed a back log of cases and that the team
were getting up to date.

The Cabinet Member for Service Delivery and Environment confirmed his agreement
of the new indicators covering sustainability. He highlighted the red indicator on the
electric vehicle charging points and thanked officers on their work to rectify the
charging points at Cyprus Road car park and to increase the number of charging
points available across the District. He noted that the Council had exceeded the
target for recycling and with the introduction of further recycling projects and the
potential food waste recycling the rate should increase.

The Cabinet Member for Customer Service noted the Council Tax Support Scheme
and highlighted the successful workshop held by the Revenues and Benefits Team.
She confirmed that another workshop would be run next year. The Cabinet Member
congratulated the officers who ran the workshop.

The Deputy Leader confirmed her attendance at the Scrutiny Committee meeting for
Leader, Finance and Performance which considered the first presentation of the new
format of the report and noted it was more informative. She highlighted the new
indicator for micro business grants and confirmed that public awareness of these
grants had increased. The Deputy Leader commented that nothing had happened at
The Orchards Shopping Centre that was not expected.

The Leader took the Cabinet to recommendations which were agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED

Cabinet noted the Council’s performance and progress with flagship activities in the
first quarter of the year.

8. SALE OF LAND FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING AT BLACKWELL FARM ROAD,
EAST GRINSTEAD.

Peter Stuart, Head of Corporate Resources introduced the report which detailed the
opportunity to increase the affordable housing supply in East Grinstead. He noted the
proposal to sell the land for £400,000 and to assist the developer to bring forward
housing provision on the site. He informed Cabinet that the representations received
were primarily planning objections. All representations were within the report for
Members to consider carefully. He confirmed that there was nothing in those
objections that would prevent the Council from agreeing the sale of the land.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019



The Leader reminded Cabinet that here the Council is the landowner rather than the
planning authority and advised Members to take careful note of the representations
from Ward Members and stakeholders.

The Cabinet Member for Service Delivery and Environment advised he was
concerned over the loss of open green spaces within a built-up area. He confirmed
that he understood the objections and comments of the Ward Members and the
residents. He highlighted that it was rare for a council to own a site that could provide
100% affordable housing once developed. He welcomed the right of termination of
the contract if planning permission is not approved by June 2020. The Cabinet
Member confirmed that 291 families waiting on the housing list requested East
Grinstead as their first preference area for housing. He understood that there would
be concerns over the ecological impact but hoped the development would be a
scheme that could be replicated elsewhere in the District.

The Head of Corporate Resources confirmed that all planning permission costs
would be funded by the purchaser of the land and that the purchase price of
£400,000 had already been agreed.

The Cabinet Member for Community noted the report confirmed the transfer of land
to the Council in 1947 for the purposes of housing. He confirmed the sale of the site
is to a registered housing provider and that the land had been advertised for sale in
the public domain giving others the opportunity to make expressions of interest. He
noted it would be difficult to contest the loss of the land when the site is within
walking distance to 140 hectares of green open space. He reminded Cabinet that all
the houses would be affordable when compared to market rents.

The Deputy Leader supported the recommendations having taken careful account of
the representations received.

The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning confirmed that central Government is
encouraging local authorities to dispose of land for affordable housing.

The Leader noted that no affordable homes had been built in East Grinstead since
2016 and it is important to consider how the Council can provide affordable housing
in the community.

The Leader took the Cabinet to recommendations which were agreed unanimously.
RESOLVED

Cabinet resolved to:

i) Approve the sale of land at Blackwell Farm Road / Holtye Road, East Grinstead to
The Guinness Partnership for the sum £400,000 to provide 10 affordable homes.

i) Instructed the Council solicitor to agree the contract for sale on behalf of the
Council in a timely manner and on such terms that are favourable to the Council.

9. QUESTIONS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 10 DUE NOTICE OF
WHICH HAS BEEN GIVEN.

None.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019



The meeting finished at 4.54 pm

Chairman

Cabinet - 14 October 2019



Agenda Iltem 5

LAND AT HURST FARM, HURSTWOOD LANE, HAYWARDS HEATH

REPORT OF: Head of Corporate Resources
Contact Officer.  Christopher Coppens, Property Lawyer
Email: christopher.coppens@midsussex.qov.uk Tel: 01444

477213
Wards Affected: Haywards Heath - Franklands
Key Decision No
Report to: Cabinet

14% October 2019

Purpose of Report
1. Torequest Cabinet to consider:

(@) The disposal of the land lying to the north-west of Hurstwood Lane, Haywards
Heath, forming part of Hurst Farm, and shown edged and/or coloured in red
on the plan to this report at Appendix D, (“the Development Land”) comprising
an area of approximately 27.62 acres, part of which forms part of an area of
de-facto open space, to the Council’s preferred developer, at market value,
for the erection of new homes as part of a larger development scheme;

(b) In light of part of the southern parcel of land comprising ancient woodland
having potentially been open for public use as de-facto informal open space,
consider any objections received in response to the statutory advertisement;
and

(¢) Inlight of the considerations in (b) to decide whether to make the disposal in
(a) as part of a larger development scheme.

Summary

2. This report outlines a proposal for housing development on part of Hurst Farm
and summarises the decisions previously made by the Council when the
Council acquired the land. It explains the current status of the land, the
Council’'s powers of disposal and seeks agreement to the disposal of three
parcels of Council owned land lying to the north-west of Hurstwood Lane,
Haywards Heath comprising an area of approximately 27.62 acres, at market
value, for the erection of new homes as part of a larger development scheme
briefly outlined in paragraphs 11 and 14 of this report.

Recommendations
3. Cabinet is recommended to:

(a) note that there were no responses to the statutory
advertisements placed in the Mid Sussex Times on 29" August
and 5" September 2019 giving notice of the Council’s intention to
dispose of the Development Land edged in red on the plan
attached at Appendix D; and

(b) authorise the Head of Corporate Resources and the Solicitor and
Head of Regulatory Services to dispose of the Development Land

Cabinet - 14 October 2019 9


mailto:christopher.coppens@midsussex.gov.uk

to the Council’s preferred developer on the basis set out in the
Exempt Appendix E to this report, tabled at the meeting, and on
such other terms as the Solicitor and Head of Regulatory
Services recommends to protect the Council’s interests.

Background

4.

In 1996, parts of Hurst Farm, Hurstwood Lane, Haywards Heath comprising
the three lots of land in the vicinity of Hurstwood Lane shown for identification
purposes only coloured in green, mauve and pink respectively on the plan
attached to this report at Appendix B, were put on the market by Sauvills,
Property Consultants, on behalf of the Secretary of State for Health. The
land was described in the sale particulars as follows:

Lot 1: A pair of semi-detached cottages, Grade Il Listed Sussex Barn and a
range of additional buildings in approximately 2.2. acres lying to the
south of the proposed relief road and west of Hurstwood Farmhouse,
which was then used for office purposes and was not part of the sale.

Lot 2: 49.06 acres of established pasture land and woodland to the north-west
of Hurstwood Lane, including some modern farm buildings and a water
pumping station.

Lot 3 45.19 acres of established pasture land, partly used for arable
production in the past, together with an area of woodland to the south-
east of Hurstwood Lane and mostly lying in Lewes District.

On the 3" September 1996, the Council’'s Special Policy and Resources
Committee received an exempt report on whether the Council should attempt
to purchase part of Hurst Farm in the vicinity of Hurstwood Lane from the
Secretary of State for Health. The report described the three lots of land as
an important part of Haywards Heath and suggested that the land could be
acquired with a view to protecting it from development in the longer term and
providing an informal open space. The report stated that Lot 2 would appear
to have the greatest potential if acquired by the Council. The report
recommended that the Council should seek to purchase Lot 2. The
Committee noted that the prospective purchaser of Lot 2 would be required to
enter into an option to enable the necessary land to be available for the
construction of the Haywards Heath Relief Road, in due course, and resolved:
‘that:

D the Council should seek to purchase Lots 1, 2 and 3 as set out in
Savills sale particulars for Hurst Farm, Hurstwood Lane, Haywards
Heath;

(2) the Secretary and Solicitor to the Council be authorised to instruct a
valuer to advise the Council on the proposed purchase;

3) it be noted that, if the Council is successful, an assessment of the
future retention, use and management of each Lot be considered by
the appropriate Committee; and

Cabinet - 14 October 2019

10



4) the Council’s programme of Capital and Revenue Projects be
amended as agreed by the Committee.

On the 16" October 1996, the Council’s Policy and Resources Committee
received an exempt report, which informed the Committee that a Valuer had
been appointed immediately following the September meeting, who had
visited the site and after discussing the matter with Savills, had advised that
the Council should submit three separate bids: one in respect of the whole
site, Lots 1, 2 and 3; one in respect of Lots 2 and 3, and one in respect of Lot
2 only. Savills subsequently issued further particulars of sale in which it was
stated that best and final bids should be submitted to them in a sealed
envelope by noon on 20" September 1996, indicating that the Vendor was
not bound to accept the highest or indeed any offer, and that a decision was
expected to be made within 10 working days of the opening of tenders.
Three bids on behalf of the Council, prepared in accordance with the Valuer's
advice, were delivered to Savills on 19" September 1996. At the meeting of
the 16" October 1996, the Committee were informed in an oral update by the
Secretary and Solicitor to the Council that she was hopeful that the Council’s
bids for Lots 2 and 3 would be successful. The Committee resolved to note
the report.

On the 27" November 1996, the Council’'s Leisure Services Committee
received an exempt report on the Special Meeting of the Policy and
Resources Committee held on 3 September 1996 and the proposed
purchase of Hurst Farm. They were informed that the Council’s bid for Lots 2
and 3 had been successful, although an amended boundary for the eastern
side of Lot 2 has been agreed, subject to agreement on a right of way to link,
what would then be two parcels of land comprising Lot 2, and that if
agreement could be reached the Council would purchase Lots 2 and 3 for the
price of £231,117, subject to contract. The report noted that the future use of
the land would need to be considered as part of the overall plan for informal
open space in Haywards Heath, that accommodation works would be
required to facilitate public access and stated that the land would continue to
be managed as farm meadow land and pasture, the costs of which would be
around £5,000. The Committee resolved to note the contents of the report.

On the 9" May 1997, the Council purchased the amended Lot 2 and the
whole of Lot 3 from the Secretary of State for Health at the price of £231,117,
subject to an option agreement made on the same date in respect of parts of
Lot 2 to enable the Secretary of State to buy back the land necessary for the
construction of the Haywards Heath Relief Road in due course. The option
was exercised by the Secretary of State for Health’s successors, the Urban
Regeneration Agency (known as English Partnerships), on 14" December
2007 and the Haywards Heath Relief Road has been constructed, and has
now been adopted by West Sussex County Council. As part of the same
arrangement the large balancing pond constructed on part of the option land
is being transferred back to the Council at nil consideration, subject to
payment to the Council of a commuted maintenance sum to cover the future
costs of maintaining the balancing pond.

Prior to the Council’s purchase of Hurst Farm, the land was occupied by a
local farmer for the purposes of grazing sheep under the terms of a grazing
licence, which use commenced in or around March 1993 and was terminated
by the Secretary of State for Health on or shortly before 9" May 1997.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019

11



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Following completion of the Council’'s purchase and, in accordance with the
earlier decisions of the Council made on the 3" September 1996 namely, “an
assessment of the future retention, use and management of each Lot be
considered by the appropriate Committee” and on the 27" November 1996
namely, “to continue with management of the land as farm meadow land and
pasture”, the Council has entered into a series of licences with various local
farmers to use and occupy the land edged and hatched in black on the
attached plan marked “Hurst Farm Grazing Area” attached to this report at
Appendix C, for the purposes of grazing sheep on the land, which use
continues to the present day.

In April 2009, the Council entered into a letter of understanding with the
owners of the Blue Land and the Yellow Land to promote the site edged in
red on the plan attached to this report at Appendix A, for development.

On the 14™ December 2016, the Council made the Haywards Heath
Neighbourhood Plan, which includes the whole of the land acquired by the
Council in 1997, as part of an allocation for 350 new homes recognising the
need to provide sites for housing in accordance with Central Government
requirements imposed on local authorities by successive Governments during
the last 10 years.

On 30™ June 2017, an application for outline planning permission (application
reference DM/17/2739) for the development of up to 375 new homes, a 2
form entry primary school with Early Years provision, a new burial ground,
allotments, Country Park, car parking, 'Green Way', new vehicular accesses
and associated parking and landscaping was submitted by the Council jointly
with Cross Stone Securities Limited.

On 9™ August 2018, the Council’s District Planning Committee considered a
report on planning application DM/17/2739 and resolved:

“That permission is to be granted subject to the conditions listed in Appendix
B, and additional conditions as listed in the Agenda Update Sheet, and the
completion of a satisfactory legal agreement to secure the necessary
affordable housing and infrastructure provision. In addition, that authority be
delegated to Officers to negotiate and complete a satisfactory S106 planning
obligation.”.

On 11" March 2019, the Council's Cabinet considered a report on the
proposed disposal of land for the proposed primary school, the burial ground,
the allotments and the Country Park with associated access and car parking
and resolved to note and consider responses to statutory advertisements
placed in the Mid Sussex Times on 3™ and 10" January 2019, and to
authorise the Head of Corporate Resources and the Solicitor and Head of
Regulatory Services to dispose of the land required for the proposed primary
school, the burial ground, the allotments and the Country Park to the parties
named in that report on the basis set out in the Exempt Appendix to that
report and on such other terms as the Solicitor and Head of Regulatory
Services recommends.

Those authorised disposals are yet to be completed.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019

12



Present status and purpose

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

The Council has a general power to acquire land by agreement under Section
120(1) of the Local Government Act 1972, which provides as follows:

“For the purposes of:
(a) any of their functions under this or any other enactment, or
(b) the benefit, improvement or development of their area,

a principal council may acquire by agreement any land, whether situated
inside or outside their area.”

The Council is therefore, empowered to acquire land by agreement inside or
outside the District of Mid Sussex for the purposes of any or the Council’s
functions or for the benefit, improvement or development of the District of Mid
Sussex.

Section 120(2) of the Local Government Act 1972, provides that:

“A principal council may acquire by agreement any land for any purpose for
which they are authorised by this or any other enactment to acquire land,
notwithstanding that the land is not immediately required for that purpose;
and, until it is required for the purpose for which it was acquired, any land
acquired under this subsection may be used for the purpose of any of the
council’s functions.”

The Council is therefore, empowered to acquire land by agreement even
though it is not immediately required for the purpose for which it was
acquired.

When land is acquired by a local authority for a statutory purpose or function,
it continues to be held by the local authority for that purpose or function until it
is formally appropriated to another purpose or function.

Where land is acquired by a local authority for a particular statutory purpose
or function and the statute under which the land was acquired restricts its use
to that particular statutory purpose then the land can only be used by the local
authority for that statutory purpose and this is the case, notwithstanding its
designation in the local plan or the existence of any planning permission
granted in respect of the land.

Although the report of the 3@ September 1996, suggested that the land could
be acquired for use as informal open space, neither the recommendation in
that report nor the resolution passed on the 3" September 1996, authorising
the purchase of the land stipulated that the land would be acquired for that
purpose and, indeed, the exempt minutes of the meetings held on the 3™
September 1996 and the 27" November 1996 clearly stipulate that the future
retention, use and management of each part of the land is to be determined
by the Council at a later date.

No further reports on the future retention, use and management of the land
have been considered by the Council, except for the report to Cabinet on 11™"

Cabinet - 14 October 2019

13



March 2019 regarding the proposed disposal of parts of Hurst Farm lying to
the east of Hurstwood Lane for the provision of a school, a burial ground,
allotments and a country park in connection with the development
contemplated by the planning application referred to in paragraph 14 of this
report, and consequently those parcels of land and the land, the subject of
this report, is held by the Council as strategic corporate investment farmland
until the Council resolves to appropriate the land for some specific statutory
purposes or function of the Council or resolves to dispose of the land, as the
Council did in respect of the land on the east side of Hurstwood Lane on 11™
March 2019. However, that resolution of Cabinet does not affect its status as
strategic corporate investment farmland, it merely declared the land covered
by that report as surplus to the Council’s requirements for the purpose of the
disposal authorised.

Council’s powers of disposal

23. The Council has a general power to dispose of land under Section 123(1) of
the Local Government Act 1972, which provides that:

“Subject to the following provisions of this section, a principal council may
dispose of land held by them in any manner they wish.”

These powers are permissive and must be exercised strictly in accordance
with the provisions of Section 123(2) and Section 123(2A) of the 1972 Act.

Terms of disposal
24, Section 123(2) of the 1972 Act, provides that:

“Except with the consent of the Secretary of State, a council shall not dispose
of land under this section, otherwise than by way of a short tenancy, for a
consideration less than the best that can reasonably be obtained.”

Section 123(7) of the 1972 Act, provides that:

“For the purposes of this section a disposal of land is a disposal by way of a
short tenancy if it consists:

(a) of a grant of a term of not exceeding seven years, or
(b) of the assignment of a term which at the date of assignment has not more
than seven years to run.”

25. Local authorities are therefore, given powers under Section 123 of the 1972
Act to dispose of land in any manner they wish, including sale of their freehold
interest, granting a lease or assigning any unexpired term of a lease, and the
granting of easements. The only constraint is that a disposal must be for the
best consideration reasonably obtainable (except in the case of short
tenancies of less than 7 years), unless the Secretary of State consents to the
disposal.

26. The Council has undertaken a marketing exercise and in line with advice from
a professional valuation surveyor proposes to dispose of the land at full
market value on the basis of the terms set out in the Exempt Appendix E to
this report, tabled at the meeting.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019

14



Disposal of open space land

27.

28.

29.

30.

Section 123(2A), provides that:

“A principal council may not dispose under subsection (1) above of any land
consisting or forming part of an open space unless before disposing of the
land they cause notice of their intention to do so, specifying the land in
guestion, to be advertised in two consecutive weeks in a newspaper
circulating in the area in which the land is situated, and consider any
objections to the proposed disposal which may be made to them.”

Open space is defined in Section 336(1) of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 as “any land laid out as a public garden, or used for the purposes of
public recreation, or land which is a disused burial ground” and it includes any
land used informally by local inhabitants for recreation, although not formally
laid out and not formally dedicated to public use under the Open Spaces Act
1906. Land that has been made available and used by local inhabitants for
informal recreation is classed as “de-facto open space”.

The land at Hurst Farm acquired by the Council in 1997 was not acquired for
use as open space, has never been laid out as a public garden, is not held or
used for the purposes of public recreation and is not a disused burial ground.
Public access to the land has been precluded by fencing and use of the land
for grazing sheep since the Council acquired the land and before that, and
therefore, the land does not constitute de-facto open space. Consequently,
sub-section 123(2A) of the Local Government Act 1972 does not apply and
there is no requirement for the Council to advertise any intention to dispose of
the land.

Section 123 deals with the disposal of land. There are similar requirements
under Section 122 of the 1972 Act relating to appropriation of land for
different purposes. In particular, subsections 122(1) and 122(2A) of the 1972
Act, provide as follows:

“(1)  Subject to the following provisions of this section, a principal council
may appropriate for any purpose for which the council are authorised by this
or any other enactment to acquire land by agreement any land which belongs
to the council and is no longer required for the purpose for which it is held
immediately before the appropriation; but the appropriation of land by a
council by virtue of this subsection shall be subject to the rights of other
persons in, over or in respect of the land concerned.”

“(2A) A principal council may not appropriate under subsection (1) above
any land consisting or forming part of an open space unless before
appropriating the land they cause notice of their intention to do so, specifying
the land in question, to be advertised in two consecutive weeks in a
newspaper circulating in the area in which the land is situated, and consider
any objections to the proposed appropriation which may be made to them.”

In the present case, section 122 of the 1972 Act has no application because
the land has not been held by the Council as open space. Rather, the
Council must consider the proposed disposals under Section 123(2A) of the
1972 Act because some of the land has possibly been used as de facto open
space. Unlike section 122(1), where the power to appropriate land is limited
to situations where the land “is no longer required for the purpose for which it

Cabinet - 14 October 2019

15



is held immediately before the appropriation”, the requirement under section
123 is simply to consider any objections to the disposal.

Section 123 Advertisements and Objections

31. As some of the Development Land is ancient woodland and has not been
subject to grazing agreements and as general public access to that limited
area is likely to have taken place since the Council acquired the land in 1997,
the Council has treated the land as “de facto open space” and has caused
notice of its intention to dispose of the Development Land to be advertised in
two consecutive weeks in the Mid Sussex Times, being a newspaper
circulating in the area in which the Primary School Land, the Burial Ground
Land, the Allotment Land and the Country Park Land is situated namely, on
29" August 2019 and 5™ September 2019 inviting members of the public who
may object to the disposal of the Development Land to make their objections
known to the Council by 30" September 2019.

32. Unlike the proposed disposal of the Primary School Land, the Burial Ground
Land, the Allotment Land and the Country Park Land in March this year, the
Council has not previously considered the disposal of the Development Land
or advertised any intention to do so and consequently there are no previous
letters of objection to consider. Further, the Council has not received any
responses to the statutory advertisements published on 29" August 2019 and
5" September 20109.

33. While there is undoubtedly a link between the planning application considered
by the Council’s District Planning Committee on the 9" August 2018 and the
need for this disposal report, it is important to remember that they are
completely independent processes that must be followed by the Council and
that, as a matter of public policy and law, we must not conflate planning
issues with property issues and vice versa. The consideration of planning
applications is not an executive function of the Council and they must be
determined by the Local Planning Authority through the planning committees
in accordance with planning policy and law; decisions concerning the
acquisition, use, management and disposal of Council land is an executive
function of the Council and must be determined by the Council’s Cabinet in
accordance with the Council’'s corporate policies and procedures and local
government law.

Policy Context

34. This proposal is brought to Cabinet against a background of Central
Government asking councils to maximise the value of their assets and bring
forward land for potential housing development.

Other Options Considered

35. The Council could consider retaining the land as strategic corporate
investment farmland and/or designating the land as informal open space.
Such a proposal would see the Council forgo a much needed capital receipt
and remove an allocated site from housing development.

Financial Implications

Cabinet - 14 October 2019

16



36. There are currently significant financial pressures for the Council in delivering
public services in the District. =~ Capital receipts can be used to invest to
deliver income to help maintain public services in the District including
supporting economic growth and job creation.

Risk Management Implications

37. As with any decision concerning the exercise of statutory powers by a local
authority, there is a risk of judicial review. Provided that the Council makes
its decision in good faith and for proper reasons the risk of judicial review is
small.

38. As with any other application, the planning application may be refused. The
Council would have the right to appeal any such refusal to the same extent
that any other applicant may appeal.

39. Any planning permission issued in respect of the land may be called in by the
Secretary of State or be subject to application for judicial review to the same
extent as any other planning permission.

Equality and customer service implications

40. As the land is held as strategic corporate investment farmland and public
access to and use of the majority of the land has been precluded by existence
of fencing and grazing sheep on the land, and as the current use for grazing
sheep is permitted by way of a licence, the Council is entitled to determine,
there are no equality and customer service implications arising from the
proposed disposal of land that has been subject to the grazing licence
arrangements. As regards the limited area to which the public have likely
enjoyed public access, given that the outline scheme contemplated by the
application referred to in clause 14 of this report provides that the land
presently ancient woodland will remain as ancient woodland and the Council’s
preferred developer will be required to maintain that area as ancient
woodland and other parts of the outline scheme as areas as open space land,
the Council is entitled to determine that there are no adverse equality and
customer service implications arising from this report and the proposed
disposal. Indeed it is considered that the public realm elements of the
scheme will improve equality and customer access to parts of the land to be
disposed of.

Other Material Implications
41. There are none, save as already disclosed in this report.
Background Papers

Legal File and earlier reports.

Cabinet - 14 October 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



\‘-.QA
e
‘. ‘
1
{
t
)
1
]
i
]
f
]
L}
[\
M .,
!
[
]
!
W
¥
!
.,
%\
Y
Y
YNed "

- UMY PRI

o
o] vy Lanas]
M09 Uinosg
b
S8N0H
.a.._.."@Jm
=y
= a
= o
A\
LY
%,
2

I

-y &
A 00001 © - 3]€dS PaN0Id 602000 [ JPQRUNY 22UV Pasasal SREL [V 6007 MaLAdoD usoy
¥ 3
i
3 © POOM
! W 1 = ]
4
*na‘.\ \__ . ﬁ \ 138
PR
' 7 2 [}
v LS | 1INl ) i g
\ j od
—— = ¥ J
4 = it /
i ==y setenoy & &
] BOOMIA wee y 3 POOM
\\ll-\\ b dd 0 ﬂE_OQU
/ )
- 5 3 o bl
(vansip;
\ 4 siorinsay v, e
. ..W T D) -  |ePop
wgg 4L h” lilH Xod 2 e =
> \ 4 ] Asmjooy 7
.-% 4 .. _I;_f\l.x__ﬁu....
. € ¥ T
E-ﬂh .—l._— *,
\ a0 o — T
N X; - 4 “ ¥
. . POOAR OQUICIERY %
Al
M \ n\ﬂ, wiz
A . >
ﬂ 0 n‘t— i =
E:& > o~
L] i 4 h\\-“d ()]
7 i g, ¥ v S
Rpget™ ' %v N
e 4 Y H
& 4 == SUpg lolly h
- g @]
I 4 \ﬁm h m
gn
0 e Futt’ 4 A L i
: ST 3
1 F X (O]
o ] i e Q s
¥ e o
27 ]
¥IAv youia ~ I/.”‘\Mm- r j >
L) t
(|83 \\.\_ .ﬂl m <
J —— s = L)
U 0 n 2 0— —Gprnll' 1]

{

I

& . ,,



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

N¥?

s,
o




This page is intentionally left blank



MID SUSSEX DISTRICT COUNCIL

Hurst Farm
Haywards Heath

Grazing Area hatched in Black

A
NORTH

O XIAN3ddV



This page is intentionally left blank



SECE

otk uf dimercns on e

Cabinet - 14 October 2019

CDOM 2015 Health & Safety Information

Th indrmastion retaes onty & "Signifcant Hazamis’ idenkied on #as trawing
and i e rmsd in conuntiion with the Designe©s Rk Assesament Regraiar

WEX212871
Area of Ownership = 14604 4m2 (1 A6bs) ——
Area of OWnership witin

Planning Boundary = 14804 4m {1 46ha)

Wex212024

Asea of Ownership = 11924.8m2 (1 15ha) —

Area of Cwmership within ————y
Planning Boundary = 11851 1m2 (1 13he) t

Wax152451

Arma of Qurershep = 22737 Sm2 {2.27ha) —_—
Arsa of Ownership withn —
Planring Boundery = 12462 B2 {$ 2%hs)

B o

WeX212874 - WOX15245%
Arse ot Ownarship = 134385 m? (13 dha} —

Area of Dumerahe withe

sales boundery = 94995 9m2 {9 5ha) - WaxX212871

Lendon: Ursl 1 West Coate House

‘ 3 Coate Street. London, £29AG
‘ T 020 7729 5505 E london@ecearchiecture com
Sussax:  Froakiyn Crambers, 11 Goning Road
Wiorthing, West Sussex, BN12 48P

T 01803 248777 E sussen@ecearchiecture cort

Bristol: Westworks, 5t Nicholas House

31-34 High Street, Brstol, BS1 2AW

T 0117 215 8557 E Dol @ecowestworka con

ECE Architecture

Hurst Farm, Haywards Heath

Drawing Tile
os map, site plan and title plan
boundaries with sales purple line

Soale
1:1250 @ A1 / 1:2500 @ A3

d XIAN3ddV

metres 20 40 ] [) 100
Drewn Checked et
MN PF 25.02.19
Jobi No Diravwemg Mo Rev
6372 SKz22
Stwkm

PRELIMINARY
CADPwt ame  EADETY - 81220 EXT2 shm tmpwd sl curarsiep my TOMEDS dwy

25



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 To confirm Minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2019.
	5 Land at Hurst Farm, Hurstwood Lane, Haywards Heath
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D


